Summary of decisions taken at a meeting of the SELEP Accountability Board, held Online via Zoom on Friday, 03 July 2020

Published on Friday 3rd July 2020. Provided a decision has not been called in by close of business on Wednesday 8th July 2020 it can then be implemented.

Please note that this is a summary of decisions taken at the meeting only. A full account of proceedings will appear in the minutes of the meeting which will be published on the Council's website by Tuesday 21st July 2020.

Enquiries to Lisa Siggins, 033301 34594, lisa.siggins@essex.gov.uk

Present:

Sarah Dance Chair

Cllr David Finch Essex County Council
Cllr Roger Gough Kent County Council
Cllr Rodney Chambers Medway Council

Cllr Keith Glazier East Sussex County Council
Cllr Ron Woodley Southend Borough Council

Cllr Shane Hebb Thurrock Council

Rosemary Nunn Higher Education representative

1 Welcome and apologies for absence

The following apologies were received.

- Cllr Rob Gledhill- substituted by Cllr Shane Hebb
- Simon Cook

2 Minutes 14.02.20

The minutes of the meeting held on Friday 14th February were agreed as an accurate record.

3 Declarations of interest

In respect of agenda item 20 Growing Places Fund Update ,Councillor Rodney Chambers declared a non-pecuniary interest as he is a trustee of Historic Dockyard Chatham. He confirmed that he would abstain from voting on that item.

Sarah Dance declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to the Kent and Medway Medical School project, considered under agenda item 12, as her spouse is being commissioned by Canterbury Christ Church University to undertake work by the university. These activities are not directly related to the project and as a non-pecuniary decision, no action was taken.

Sarah Dance also declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to the finance update report, considered under agenda item 22, as she receives an allowance from the SELEP Secretariat budget for her role as Deputy Chair. ECC legal services confirmed this is not a disclosable pecuniary interest and therefore no action was required.

4 Questions from the public

There were none.

5 Local Growth Fund Capital Programme Report

The Accountability Board (the Board) received a report from Rhiannon Mort the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the latest position of the Local Growth Fund (LGF) Capital Programme, as part of SELEP's Growth Deal with Government.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** the provisional total spend in 2019/20 of £65.004m LGF excluding DfT retained schemed and £98.607m including DfT retained schemes, as set out in Table 2 of the report.
- 2. **To Agree** the updated total planned LGF spend in 2020/21 of £91.785m excluding DfT retained schemes and increasing to £118.430m including DfT retained schemes, subject to the final third of LGF being received from Central Government.
- 3. **To Note** the deliverability and risk assessment, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
- 4. **To Approve** the slippage of £12m LGF spend on Beaulieu Park Railway Station to 2025/26, as set out in Table 5 of the report.
- 5. **To Note** the intention to present the outcome of MHCLG's review of LGF projects and detailed information on those projects forecasting LGF spend beyond 31 March 2021 to the Board and SELEP Ltd in October 2020.

6 Basildon Innovation Warehouse LGF Decision

The Board received a report from Howard Davies, SELEP Capital Programme and a presentation from Steer the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £870,000 Local Growth Fund (LGF) to the delivery of the Basildon Innovation Warehouse (the Project).

- 1. **To Note**: that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21 be confirmed by Central Government
- 2 **To Approve:** The award of £870,000 to support the delivery of the Project identified in the Business Case and which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with high certainty, subject to:

2.1. written confirmation that full planning permission has been granted for the Project.

- 2.2 The final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in full or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government
- 3 **To Note:** That no LGF will be transferred to Essex County Council (ECC) for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 2.1 and 2.2 have been satisfied

7 Exceat Bridge Funding Decision

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer SELEP Capital Programme Officer, which was presented by Rhiannon Mort, and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £2,110,579 Local Growth Fund (LGF) to the Exceat Bridge Replacement project (the Project) in Seaford, East Sussex.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** the risk of abortive costs being incurred, if planning consent is not secured and the Project is unable to proceed. Any abortive LGF spend must be repaid by East Sussex County Council (ESCC) to the SELEP Accountable Body.
- 2. **To Note** that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Government.
- 3. **To Approve t**he award of £2,110,579 LGF for the delivery of the Project which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with medium certainty of achieving this, subject to:
- 3.1.receipt of written confirmation from the East Sussex County Council S151 officer that all funding has been secured to enable delivery of the Project;
- 3.2. the Strategic Board reaffirming support for the LGF spend beyond the Growth Deal; and
- 3.3. The final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government.
- 4. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred to ESCC for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 3. above have been satisfied.

8 Eastbourne Fisherman LGF Funding Decision

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer, and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £1.08m LGF to

Eastbourne Fishermen's Quayside and Infrastructure Development project (the Project). This project has been identified by the Investment Panel as a priority through the LGF3b pipeline development process.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Central Government.
- 2. **To Agree** the award of £1.08m LGF to support the delivery of the Project identified in the Business Case and which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with medium to high certainty of achieving this, subject to the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in full or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government (as set out in 1. above).
- 3. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred to East Sussex County Council for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 2. above have been satisfied.

9 Southend Town Centre Interventions Project LGF (Tranche 2) funding decision

The Board received a report from Howard Davies, and a presentation from Steer the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £632,292 LGF to the delivery of the Southend Town Centre Interventions project Tranche 2 (the Project). This Project has been identified by the Investment Panel as a priority through the LGF3b pipeline development process.

- 1. **To Note** that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Government
- 2. **To Approve t**he award of £632,292 Tranche 2 LGF to support the delivery of the Project identified in the Business Case and which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with high certainty of achieving this, subject to;
- 2.1 The final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government.
- 3. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred to Southend Borough Council for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 2.1 above have been satisfied.

10 Kent Strategic Congestion Management Programme

The Board received a report from Howard Davies, which was presented by Rhiannon Mort and a presentation from Steer the purpose of which was to bring forward a change to the scope of the Kent Strategic Congestion Management Programme (the Programme) for consideration by the Board.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Agree** that the Wateringbury Crossroads scheme will not be taken forward as part of the Programme, which will result in a total of £300,000 LGF being available for alternative investment;
- 2. **To Agree** the proposal for £200,000 of the £300,000 LGF made available through the cancellation of the Wateringbury Crossroad scheme to be retained against the Programme for alternative investment in the A2/A251 junction improvements scheme;
- **To Note t**hat the remaining £100,000 LGF made available through the cancellation of the Wateringbury Crossroads scheme will be returned to SELEP for reallocation through the LGF3b project pipeline;
- 4. **To Agree t**he award of £500,000 LGF to the A2/A251 junction improvements scheme, which has been assessed by the Independent Technical Evaluator as presenting high value for money with high certainty.
- 5. **To Agree** to place a £300,000 notional charge over the Thanet Parkway project to enable the transfer of funding to the Project prior to confirmation from MHCLG of the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation.

6. **To Note** that:

- if the final third of LGF funding is received in full, that the charge will be removed from the Thanet Parkway project and the project will receive the agreed £14m LGF allocation in full:
- a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Central Government; and
- if no further LGF funding is received from MHCLG, that the LGF allocation for the Thanet Parkway project will reduce by £300,000 and that Kent County Council will need to take steps to seek alternative funding sources to enable delivery of the project.

11 Chelmsford College New Construction Centre

The Board received a report from Howard Davies, and a presentation from Steer the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £1,295,200 LGF to the delivery of the Chelmsford College, New Construction Centre (the Project). This Project has been identified by the Investment Panel as a priority through the LGF3b pipeline development process.

Resolved:

1. **To Note** that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Central Government.

- 2. **To Approve** the award of £1,295,200 LGF to support the delivery of the Project identified in the Business Case and which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with medium certainty of achieving this, subject to:
- 2.1. written confirmation being received by SELEP from Essex County Council (ECC) as lead authority to confirm that the remaining £100,000 funding has been secured;
- 2.2. written confirmation that full planning permission has been granted for the Project: and
- 2.3. the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government
- 3. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred to Essex County Council for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 2.1. 2.2 and 2.3 above have been satisfied.

12 Kent and Medway Medical School Phase 2

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer, and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £4m Local Growth Fund (LGF) to the delivery of the Kent and Medway Medical School (the Project).

Resolved:

- 1. **To Agree** the award of £4m LGF to support the delivery of the Project identified in the Business Case and which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with high certainty of achieving this, subject to sufficient LGF being made available to support the Project;
- 2. **To Agree** to place a £4m notional charge over the Thanet Parkway project to enable the transfer of funding to the Project prior to confirmation from MHCLG of the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation;

3. **To Note** that:

- 3.1. if the final third of funding is received in full, that the charge will be removed from the Thanet Parkway project and the project will receive the agreed £14m LGF allocation in full;
- 3.2. a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF allocated to SELEP in 2020/21 be confirmed by Central Government;

3.3. if no further LGF funding is received from MHCLG, that the LGF allocation for the Thanet Parkway project will reduce by £4m and that Kent County Council will need to take steps to seek alternative funding sources to enable delivery of the project.

4. **To Note** that assurances have been received from Kent County Council regarding the ongoing viability of the Project in light of the University of Kent's financial position, and that the risk regarding the LGF spend on the Project sits with Kent County Council.

13 A13 widening LGF Funding Decision Report

The Board received a report (Appendix 1 was considered under Exempt items) from Anna Eastgate, Assistant Director Lower Thames Crossing & Transport Infrastructure Projects, Thurrock Council and Rhiannon Mort, and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board on the delivery of the A13 widening project (the Project).

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** that significant progress has been made since the last meeting with regard to the three significant issues which had led to difficulties on the Project; and
- 2. **To Note** the updated total cost of the Project and the position with regard to the funding package, as set out in section 6 of the report and the confidential appendix. An assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 emergency has yet to be made with respect to the cost of the Project.
- 3. **To Agree** to place a £2.3m notional charge over the Tilbury Riverside project to enable the transfer of £2.3m LGF to the Project, prior to confirmation from Central Government of the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation to SELEP.
- 4. **To Agree** the award of an additional £8,942,400 LGF to the Project, which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with medium certainty of achieving this. Of the £8,942,400 funding award, £6,640,400 LGF will be awarded subject to the remaining third of SELEP's LGF allocation being transferred by Central Government or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government. The further £2.3m LGF will be made available for immediate drawdown.

5 **To Note** that:

- 5.1 if the final third of LGF funding is received in full, that the charge will be removed from Tilbury Riverside project and the Tilbury Riverside project will receive the agreed £2.36m LGF allocation in full;
- 5.2 a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Central Government;
 - 5.3 if no further LGF funding is received from Central Government, that

the LGF allocation for the Tilbury Riverside project will reduce by £2.3m. Thurrock Council will need to take steps to seek alternative funding sources to enable delivery of the Tilbury Riverside project and identify an additional £6,640,400 to bridge the funding gap for the A13 widening.

14 Innovation Park Medway Update Report

The Board received a report from Rhiannon Mort and Jessica Jagpal Senior LGF Programme Co-Ordinator ,the purpose of which was to provide the Board with an update on the delivery of the Innovation Park Medway project (the Project) and to consider the funding decision in relation to Phase 3 of the Project.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** that the benefit cost ratio is just over the threshold for presenting high value for money at 2.1:1, relative to the 2:1 threshold. If there is any reduction to the scale of benefits, such as through reduced demand for commercial space following a move to increased homeworking, the benefit cost ratio would likely fall below the 2:1 threshold for high value for money.
- 2. **To Agree** the award of a further £1.519m LGF to the Project subject to:
- 2.1 Written confirmation being received from Medway Council S151 officer to confirm the full funding package is in place, including the funding to deliver the IPM mitigation works to M2 Junction 3;
- 2.2. Endorsement of LGF spend beyond the Growth Deal by the Strategic Board;
- 2.3. The final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation being transferred by the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) or the Strategic Board prioritising the Project for funding, should only part of the final third of LGF be confirmed by Government;
- 3. **To Note** that a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Government; and
- 4. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred to Medway Council for the delivery of the Project until the conditions set out in 2. above have been satisfied.

15 East Malling Advanced Technology Horticultural Zone LGF Funding Decision

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the award of £1.75m Local Growth Fund (LGF) to the East Malling Advanced Technology Horticultural Zone project (the Project) in East Malling, Kent.

Resolved:

1. **To Approve** the award of £1,683,600 LGF to the delivery of the Project which has been assessed as presenting high value for money with medium/low certainty of achieving this, subject to:

receipt of written confirmation being received by SELEP Secretariat to confirm that match funding has been secured either through land sales at the required price or through confirmation that of a commercial loan as a viable alternative to enable delivery of the Project;

- 2. **To Agree** to place a £1,683,600 notional charge over the Thanet Parkway project to enable the transfer of funding to the Project prior to confirmation from MHCLG of the final third of the 2020/21 LGF allocation
- 3. **To Note** that no LGF will be transferred for the delivery of the Project until the condition set out in 1. above has been satisfied.

4. To Note that:

- if the final third of LGF funding is received in full, that the charge will be removed from the Thanet Parkway project and the project will receive the agreed £14m LGF allocation in full;
- a further decision will be sought from the Strategic Board to determine how the funding should be directed if only part of the final third of LGF, allocated to SELEP in 2020/21, be confirmed by Central Government; and
- if no further LGF funding is received from MHCLG, that the LGF allocation for the Thanet Parkway project will reduce by £1,683,600 and that Kent County Council will need to take steps to seek alternative funding sources to enable delivery of the project.

16 Sturry Link Road Update Report

The Board received a report (Appendix 1 was considered under Exempt items) from Rhiannon Mort, the purpose of which was for the Board to receive an update on the delivery of the A28 Sturry Link Road project (the Project), Canterbury, Kent.

- 1. **To Agree** to reverse the decision to reallocate £4.791m from the Project to the LGF pipeline. This is in light of the exceptional circumstances which have prevented the Project from being able to satisfy the conditions, agreed in February 2020, for the Project to retain the unspent LGF; and
- 2. **To Agree t**o extend the deadline until 18th September 2020 for planning consent to be secured for:
- 2.1. The Broad Oak Farm and Sturry development; and
- 2.2 The Project itself.

17 Queensway Gateway Road Update

The Board received a report from Marwa Al-Qadi, Project Co-ordinator – East Sussex Growth, East Sussex County Council and Helen Dyer, the purpose of which was for the Board to receive a further update on the delivery of the Queensway Gateway Road project (the Project).

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** the latest position on the delivery of the Project; and
- 2. **To Note** that the Board will be provided with a further update on the Project at its next meeting on 18th September 2020.

18 Bexhill Enterprise Park North Update

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer and Marwa Al-Qadi, Project Coordinator – East Sussex Growth, East Sussex County Council, the purpose of which was for the Board to receive an update on the delivery of the Bexhill Enterprise Park North project (the Project).

Resolved:

- **1. To Note** the latest position on the delivery of the Project;
- **2. To Agree** that LGF spend on the delivery of the Project, beyond the £440,000 already transferred to East Sussex County Council, should remain paused until planning consent has been granted.
- **3. To Agree** that a further update on the Project which confirms the outcome of, or sets out a clear timetable for conclusion of, the planning appeal should be provided to the Board at their meeting on 18th September 2020.

19 USP College LGF Change Request

The Board received a report from Howard Davies and a presentation from Steer, the purpose of which was is to bring forward to the Board a proposal to change the location of the original Project proposal.

- 1. **To Approve** the change of location for this Project which has been assessed by the ITE as presenting high value for money with medium/low certainty of achieving this, subject to:
- Written confirmation that the College has completed the acquisition of the Canvey Island Skills Centre
- 2. **To Note** the reduced amount of match funding from the USP College. From £900,000 to £350,000
- 3. **To Note** The proposed location does not need planning permission which will allow the Project to proceed sooner and thus all LGF spend will be completed by March 2021.

20 20 Growing Places Fund Update

Due to his earlier declaration of interest, Cllr Chambers abstained from voting on this item.

The Board received a report from Helen Dyer, the purpose of which was to update the Board on the latest position of the Growing Places Fund (GPF) Capital Programme.

- 1. **To Note** the updated position on the GPF programme.
- 2. **To Note** that at their meeting on 17th April 2020, the Strategic Board agreed to recommend to the Board that flexibility should be granted to delay GPF repayments for existing projects where justification is provided of the impact of COVID-19. Decisions on individual repayment schedule changes will be brought to the Board for consideration.
- 3. **To Note** that at their meeting on 17th April 2020, the Strategic Board agreed a 12 month grace period, starting from 1st April 2020, in relation to the charging of interest on GPF loans where repayments are not able to be made in line with agreed repayment schedules due to the impact of the COVID-19 virus.
- 4. **To Note** the identified risk to the repayment schedules for the following projects:
- 4.1. Sovereign Harbour
- 4.2. North Queensway
- 4.3. Javelin Way
- 4.4. Live Margate
- 4.5. No Use Empty Commercial
- 4.6. Workspace Kent
- 5. **To Approve** the revised repayment schedule for the Fitted Rigging House project and agree that, despite repayments not being made in line with the original repayment schedule, no interest will be charged on the loan.
- 6. **To Approve** the revised repayment schedule for the Charleston Centenary project and agree that, despite repayments not being made in line with the original repayment schedule, no interest will be charged on the loan.
- 7. **To Note** the revised drawdown schedule for the Colchester Northern Gateway project.
- 8. **To Note** the update on the latest round of GPF investments (GPF round 3) following the Strategic Board meeting which was held on 12th June 2020.

21 SELEP Operations Update

The Board received a report from Suzanne Bennett Chief Operating Officer, the purpose of which was for the Board to be updated on the operational activities within the Secretariat to support both this Board and the Strategic Board. The report included an update on risk management following the declaration of the Covid-19 Pandemic and updates on items of governance. The financial update was included in a separate report.

Resolved:

- 1. **To Note** the update on the implementation of the LEP Review, outcome of the 2019/20 Annual Performance Review and an update on compliance with the Assurance Framework.
- 2. **To Note** the update on the impact of Covid-19 on the operations of SELEP and the identification of substantial risks associated to the crisis.
- 3. **To Note** the Risk Register at Appendix 3 of the report.

22 SELEP Finance Update

The Board received a report from Lorna Norris, Senior Finance Business Partner the purpose of which was for the Board to consider the provisional outturn position for the SELEP Revenue budget for 2019/20 and the update to the 2020/21 budget including specific grants.

- 1. **To Approve** the provisional outturn for the South East LEP revenue budget for 2019/20 in Table 1 in the report
- 2. **To Approve** the contribution of £579,000 to General Reserves in Table 1 in the report;
- 3. **To Approve** the recommended increase in the minimum level of reserves to £200,000, held to meet the costs of closure should SELEP cease to function;
- 4 **To Approve** the updated 2020/21 SELEP revenue budget set out in Table 6 in the report, including the specific grants summarised in Table 5 in the report (and detailed in Appendix 1 of the report);
- **To Approve** the application of the GPF Capital Grant as set out in Table 8 in the report and summarised as follows:
- 5.1 Supporting the GPF Pipeline of Projects £12.296m
- 5.2 Extension of the Sector Support Fund (SSF) £1m
- 5.3 Establish a COVID-19 Skills Fund £2m
- 5.4 Establish a COVID-19 SME Business Support Fund £2.4m
- 5.5 Establish a COVID-19 LGF Contingency Fund £3.596m
- 5.6 Contribution to reserves to support the SELEP Secretariat Budget in 2021/22 and 2022/23 £1m
- 6. **To Approve** the reallocation of COVID-19 LGF Contingency Fund of

£3.596m to support the GPF Pipeline of Projects, in the event that Government confirms the allocation of at least this amount of the remaining third of LGF to SELEP.

- 7. **To Note** that all GPF allocations will be subject to Board approval of their business case, in line with the SELEP Assurance Framework.
- 8 **To Note** that both the COVID-19 Skills Fund and the COVID-19 SME Business Support Fund require Strategic Board to approve the criteria for allocation, in line with the SELEP Assurance Framework.
- 9 **To Note** that any drawdowns from the SELEP Secretariat Budget Reserve will require approval from the Board.
- 10. **To Note** that by the end of 2022/23, the level of reserves is forecast to be below the recommended minimum level and that further options to increase income or reduce costs will need to be identified to mitigate this risk as part of future budget planning.

23 Date of next meeting

The Board noted that the next meeting will take place on Friday 18th September 2020 either online at High House Production Park.

There being no urgent business the meeting closed at 12.53 pm

24 Exclusion of the Public

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the remaining items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

- 25 A13 widening LGF Decision CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX The Board noted the A13 widening LGF Decision CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX.
- 26 A28 Sturry Link Road CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX 1
 The Board noted A28 Sturry Link Road CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX 1.

Chairman